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Letter to Dr. F. Videbaek

July 20, 2003


Director’s Office

Building 510F 

P.O. Box 11973-5000

Phone 631 344-5414

Fax 631 344-5820

tkirk@bnl.gov

DRAFT July 20, 2003

Dr. Flemming Videbaek, Spokesperson

BRAHMS Collaboration

Physics Department

Brookhaven National Laboratory

Upton, NY 11973

Dear Flemming:

This letter comes to formalize and make specific, the outcome of discussions held among the RHIC spokespersons, the Laboratory director and deputy director, the chair of the BNL Physics Department and the ALD-HENP following the outcome of the DOE RHIC Program Review of July 9-11, 2003 and the strongly expressed need by DOE’s Nuclear Physics Division for a detailed and integrated 5-year planning effort encompassing the RHIC facility operations and the RHIC physics program.  In addition to the requests made for information in this letter, the RHIC spokespersons, the Physics Department and my office will be joined in the planning exercise by managers in the Collider-Accelerator Department as we go forward in the needed work.  I will also ensure that close communication with our planning process will be maintained with DOE’s Nuclear Physics Division as we go forward.

The vehicle for providing the new information needed from the RHIC experiments will be an enhanced and expanded version of the Beam Use Proposal (BUP) heretofore aimed at reporting results from the just completed operating year and proposing work for the coming year, and now expanded to provide a 5-year operating and physics planning horizon.  The content of the new BUP format will be specified in this letter and the due date for this year’s BUPs will be August 31, 2003.  In our July meeting, the four RHIC spokespersons informally agreed to this scope and schedule.  It is the schedule required to enable the BNL HENP Program Advisory Committee (PAC) to consider the content of the BUPs and provide program advice to BNL on their content.  Advice on the RHIC program by the PAC is important to DOE as well as to the Laboratory.

Let me also comment on the longer term planning document requested in my letters to the spokespersons of February 28, 2003.  In those letters, I solicited the following strategic planning information:

“I intend to focus primarily on the strategic time frame beyond the mining of accessible data regimes from our present facilities and detectors and their incremental improvements.  Efforts to consider this longer-term planning regime have already been underway for some time in a number of venues as noted above, but this letter comes to solicit your participation in a specific planning exercise that will be of paramount importance for the U.S. Department of Energy and for the wider nuclear physics community.  By this, I mean the clear identification of next generation science goals and the planning of facilities on the scale of the electron cooling luminosity upgrade of RHIC and its detectors, as well as eRHIC and possible large new detectors in the RHIC complex to realize these goals...”  plus

“To engage these partners [RHIC Collaborations, PAC and BNL] in a productive dialog, the method that I plan to employ relies on the ability of the RHIC collaborations to produce concise documents that identify decade-scale science goals and facilities paths to reach these goals, together with the ability of the PAC to critique these goals and development paths from the perspective of the larger nuclear science community.  At a later stage of this longer-term planning process, it is likely that workshops will be carried out to consolidate the goals and facility planning and members of the PAC will be encouraged to participate in these.  For now, the PAC will act as reviewers and critics of the documents requested here.”
I do not intend to withdraw from this charge or the requested information, but it seemed during our discussion on this topic, that the July 31, 2003 time frame could not be met while also expanding the BUPs to the 5-year horizon and including the needed planning integration with the resources in the Laboratory.  Accordingly, I am extending the deadline for production of the strategy papers by three months, until October 31, 2003, in order to give the collaborations time to accomplish both missions.  Since it is of paramount importance to involve the advice and consultation of the PAC in the strategic plan that will emerge from the strategy papers, I will create an appropriate PAC forum during the fall of 2003 to consider these strategy papers and a mechanism to provide PAC advice to BNL.  I observe that the planning deadline from DOE’s point of view is January 2004, so this should be mutually workable among the stakeholders.  I hope the RHIC Collaborations will agree with this planning strategy, schedule and goals.  Please refer to the February 28 letter for content.

Coming back to the 5-year BUPs, I next list the needed contents and scope for the expanded versions:

1. The time span to be covered in the request is for Fiscal Years 2004-2008.  As always, you will be required to provide both a summary of the data you acquired in the FY 2003 running period plus the BRAHMS Collaboration’s requested FY04 colliding beam(s) running plan for your experiment and the anticipated physics contributions that you expect to obtain from the requested data.  In the expanded BUP now requested, you are asked to provide beam requests for the runs in each of the years FY04-08 and their projected physics yields.

2. In earlier BUPs, with their one-year planning horizons, the number of running weeks was specific and governed by the controlling President’s Budget for the upcoming year.  The anticipated colliding beam luminosities for calculating physics yields were provided by Thomas Roser in a beams planning paper each year.  The ‘RHIC Run 4 Running Projections (FY2004)’ paper dated June 20, 2003, was sent to you on June 23, 2003 to help you plan the FY04 run.  In the absence of detailed projections for improvements in the RHIC beams performance over time, I suggest you use the June 20, 2003 luminosity projections in your 5-year planning exercise.  If significant improvements over time can be projected by C-AD, we will supply you with an updated planning document when it becomes available.

3. In the present 5-year planning exercise, the fact that we do not have reliable operating weeks/year guidance will necessitate some operating scenario scheme to bound what can be achieved.  The two most useful scenarios in today’s planning environment are: i) ‘Constant Effort’, by which I mean that we use constant-dollar RHIC program funding in FY04 dollars for each of the planning years as the basis, explicitly ignoring the effects of inflation and assumed to yield 27 cryo weeks per year for RHIC operations; ii) ‘Optimum’, by which I mean 37 cryo weeks per year as has been the goal of the RHIC program since its first review by NSAC in 1996.  The cumulative difference over a 5-year period for these planning scenarios will be enormous, but the alternatives are few.  Therefore, I ask you to develop scenarios i) and ii) for the 5-year planning period.  If more explicit planning guidance is received from DOE, we will interpolate the outcome accordingly.

4. Associated with the development of the 27 and 37 cryo weeks per year BUPs requested in this letter, the Laboratory and the collaborations will embark, in parallel, on a course of integrated planning under which a larger number of funding scenarios will be developed that are relevant to the long-term evolution of the facility.  There are no explicit impacts on the BUPs from this exercise but its outcome can and will serve as the basis for choosing the projected optimum path of running vs development of future capability.  We have discussed this process and I will not attempt to elaborate it further in this letter.

I regret the circumstances that forced this abrupt change in the planning work that has been underway in the collaborations since my letter of February 28, but we all recognize the necessity of responding to the planning needs of the DOE as well as our own.  These needs will be served by the expanded BUPs as described here when combined with the longer term strategic planning papers now due on October 31, 2003.  Thank you for your positive response to this challenging assignment and for the resulting planning papers to come.

I am available to discuss the content of this letter as you may wish.

Best regards,

Thomas B.W. Kirk

Associate Laboratory Director

High Energy and Nuclear Physics

Cc: BNL HENP Program Advisory Committee Members
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